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Independent auditors' report

To the shareholders of
Al Mal Investment Company — KPSC
Kuwait

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Al Mal Investment Company —
(Kuwaiti Public Shareholding Company) and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows fot the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibifity for the Consolidated Financial Siatemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use by the state of
Kuwait and, for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consclidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whethet due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that <we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the approprateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Al Mal Investment Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013, and their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted for use by the state of Kuwait.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements which
states that the Group incurred a loss of KID10,647,237 for the year ended 31 December 2013 and as of that
date has accumulated losses of KID22,651,149. Furthermore, the Group is actively engaged with its lenders to
restructure certain debt obligations due to either the default on the repayment of such obligations or where
such obligations have become due/matured. These conditions along with other matters as set forth in Note
2, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Groups ability to
continue as a going concern.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company and the consolidated financial
statements, together with the contents of the report of the Company’s board of directors relating to these
consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further teport that we obtained all the
information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated
financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. 25 of 2012 and by
the Company’s articles and memorandum of association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out
and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No. 25 of 2012 nor of
the Company’s articles and memorandum of association, as amended, have occutred during the year ended
31 December 2013 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the
Company.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, to the best of cur knowledge and belief, we have not
become aware of any material viclations, of the provisions of Law No.32 of 1968, as amended, concerning
currency, the Central Bank of Kuwait and the organisation of banking business, and its related regulations or
of the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010 concerning the Capital Markets Authority and its related regulations
during the year ended 31 December 2013, that might have had a material effect on the busmess of the Group
or on its financial position. -,
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Abdullatif M. Al-Aiban (CPA) d b
{(Licence No. 94-A) (Licence No. 141-A)

of Grant Thornton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners of MAZARS - Chartered Accountants
Kuwait

14 May 2014



A1 Mal Investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Lonsolidated Financial Statemenis
31 December 2013

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Lot

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2013 2012
KD KD
Income
Realised loss on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or
loss (32,055} -
Unrealised loss from investments at fair value through profit or loss (825,000) {23,810)
Realised loss on disposal of available for sale investments 17 (1,544,994) (1,354,197}
Dividend income 420,652 1,015,325
Net income from communication services 9 432,173 (2,348)
Management fees and other income 10 851,324 909,253
Share of results of associates 19 202,187 3,100,985
Change in fair value of investment properties 20 {532,848} 1,974,687
Gain on sale of property & equipment 21 593,171 -
Sukuk & interest income 318,938 605,329
Foreign exchange gain 162,708 125,880
48,254 6,351,084
Expenses and other charges
Finance costs 12 3,544,905 4,115,318
Staff costs 1,108,181 1,168,905
General, administrative and other expenses 723,958 872,371
Impairment of investment in sukuk 18 2,682,390 -
Impairment of avaliable for sale investments 17.4 180,155 343,363
Impairment of investment in associates 19.4 691,955 1,229,628
Impairment of receivables and other assets 16 1,761,947 4,635,175
10,693,491 12,384,760
Loss for the year (10,647,237} (6,013,678)
Attributable to :
Owners of the parent company (9,377,925) (6,171,070)
Non-controlling interests (1,269,312) 157,304
(10,647,237) (6,013,676)
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of the
Parent Company 13 (17.75) Fils (11.68) Fils

The notes set ont on pages 9 1o 54 form an integral part of these consolidated finanvial statements.



&F Mal Investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 Degember 2013

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2013 2012
KD KD

Loss for the year (10,647,237} (6,013,675)
Other comprehensive income:
ltems to be reclassified fo profit or loss in subsequent perods:
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations {656,075) (201,908)
Available for sale investments:
- Net changes in fair value arising during the year (383,258) 59,116
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal (736,185) 550,313
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on impairment 180,155 343,383
Share of other comprehensive income of associaies 67,387 {78,936)
Total other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profif or loss in

subsequent periods (1,527,876) 871,950
Total other carnprehensive incorne not being reclassified to profit or Ioss in

subsequent periods - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year (1,527,976) 671,950
Total comprehensive income for the year (12,175,213} (5,341,726}
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent company (10,900,517} (5,468,211)

Non-controlling interests (1,274,696) 126,485

(12,175,213) (5,341,726)

The notes set out on pages 9 lo 54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Al Mal Investment Company - KPSC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statoments
31 December 2013

Consolidated statement of financial position

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2013 2012
KD KD
Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 14 5,248,316 7,230,153
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 15 796,942 1,793,118
Accounts receivable and other assets 16 20,186,473 19,626,215
Available for sale investments 17 8,343,759 15,372,870
lnvestment in sukuk 18 3,897,714 8,369,397
lnvestment in associates 18 12,487,150 11,805,998
Investment properties 20 74,861,147 74,298,817
Property and equipment 21 37,599 926,355
Goodwill 90,332 90,332
Total assets 125,949,432 137,514,255
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 22 12,905,963 22,683,047
Borrowings 23 58,427,936 47 687,664
Bonds issued 24 11,988,000 11,888,000
Employees’ end of service indemnity 351,213 417,900
Total liabilities 83,673,112 82,776,611
Equity
Share capital 25 52,828,125 52,828,125
Foreign currency translation reserve 26 (815,385) {227,029)
Cumulative changes in fair value 26 499,433 1,433,869
Accumulated losses (22,651,149) (13,273,224)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 29,861,024 40,761,541
Non-confrolling interests 26 12,415,296 13,976,103
Total equity 42,278,320 54,737,644
Total liabilities and equity 125,949,432

137,514,255

)

Fahad Mohammad Al-Sharekh
Chairman

Abdul Wah b-A-Nutawa

Chief Exgleutive Officer

The notes set ont on pages 9 to 54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial staterents.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
MNote 2013 2012
KD KD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year (10,647,237) (6,013,676)
Adjustments for:
Impairment of available for sale investments 180,155 343,363
Impairment of receivables and other assets 1,761,947 4835175
Impaiment of investment in sukuk 2,682,390 -
Impairment of investment in associates 691,955 1,229,628
Gain on sale of property and equipment {593,171) -
Change in fair value of investment properies 532,848 (1,974,667)
Realised loss on disposal of available for sale investments 1,544,994 1,354,197
Dividend income {420,652) {1,015,325)
Share of results of associaies (202,187) (3,100,985)
Depreciation 33,003 81,432
Provision for employees end of service benefits 69,774 103,908
Sukuk and interest income (318,938) (605,328)
Finance costs 3,544,905 4,115,318
(1,140,214) (848,963)

Changes in operating assets and fiabilities:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 996,176 (7.845)
Accounts receivable and other assets (2,049,616) 2,111,371
Accounts payable and other liabilities {11,320,079) 1,044,169
Cash {used in)/from operations (13,513,733) 2,300,732
Employee end of service benefits paid {136,461) {149,461)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (13,650,194) 2,151,271
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition to available for sale investments {187,000} -
Proceeds from sale/redemption of available for sale investments 4,416,108 5,076,273
MNet change in sukuk (210,707} (196,872)
Additions to property and equipment {9,143) (48,766)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 1,458,067 -
Additions to investment properties {572,690) -
Additions to investment in associates (1,555,400) {3,894,240)
Dividend received and return of capital from associates 45,852 83,121
Dividend income received 420,652 1,015,325
Sukuk and Interest income received 1,760 293,178
Net cash from investing activities 3,807,499 2,328,019
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in blocked deposiis 1,900,000 -
Proceeds from borrowings 11,489,105 -
Repayment of borrowings and bonds (1,523,218) (1,425,012)
Finance costs paid (2,105,029) (4,057 857)
Net cash fromf{used in) financing activities 9,760,858 (5,482,869}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (81,837) (1,003,579)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5,330,153 6,333,732
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 14 5,248,316 5,330,153

The notes sef out on pages 9 to 54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Al Mal lnvestment Company - KPSE and Subsidiaries 9
onsolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2013

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 incorporation and activities

Al Mal Investment Company — KPSC, (“the parent company™}, is a Kuwaiti Public Shareholding Company
established on 2 January 1980 under the Comimercial Companies Law No. 15 of 1960 and amendiments
thereto. The parent company is regulated by the Central Bank of Kuwait and the Capital Market Authority as
an investment company and its shares are listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange. The parent company and its
subsidiaries (listed in note 7) are together referred as “the Group”.

The principal objectives of the parent company are as follows:

- Investment in various economic sectors through participating in establishing spectalised companies or
purchasing securities or shares in those companies;

- Act as investment trustees and manage different investment portfolics for others; and
- Actas intermediary in borrowing operations in retum for commission;

Further, the Parent Company has the right to participate and subscribe, in any way with other firms which
operate in the same field or those which would assist in achieving its objectives in [{uwait and abroad and to
purchase those fitms or participate in their equity.

The Companies Law issued on 26 November 2012 by Decree Law no 25 of 2012 {the “Companies Law™),
which was published in the Official Gazette on 29 November 2012, cancelled the Commercial Companies
Law No 15 of 1960. The Companies Law was subsequently amended on 27 Match 2013 by Law No. 97 of
2013.

On 29 September 2013, Ministry of Commerce and Industry issued its regulation No. 425/2013 regarding the
Executive by-laws of the Companies Law. All existing companies are required to comply with articles of these
by-laws within one year from the date of its issuance.

The address of the parent company’s registered office s Arabian Guif Street, Ahmed Tower, Floor 23, PO
Box 26308, Safat 13124, Srate of Kuwait.

The board of directors authorised these consolidated financial statements for issue on 14 May 2014 The
general assembly of the Patent Company’s shareholders has the power to amend these consolidated financial
statements after issuance.

2 Fundamental accounting concept

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group incurred a loss of KIDD10,647,237 (KID9,377,925
attributable to owners of the Parent Company) and as at that date the Group’s accumulated losses amounted
to KID22,651,149 and the Group had liabilities of KI083,673,112 majority of which are due within one year.
Furthermore, as noted in note 23, bank loans and Islamic debt instruments totalling to KID3,600,000 and
K1211,000,000 respectively, of the Group have matured/become due as of the reporting date and further the
Group defaulted on repayment of the Bonds issued and accrued interest due which has resulted in the total
amount of KID11,988,000 becoming due (refer note 24). As noted in note 23.3 one of the lenders to whom
an amount of KI03,600,000 is due has also initated legal proceedings to foreclose on the Parent Company.

The factors mentioned above cast significant deubt about the Groups ability to continue as a going concern
and its ability to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The management of the Parent Company have taken a number of steps, to regularize/manage the Groups
obligations, obtain longer term funding and to improve operations and generating cash flows, some of which
are described below.
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A Mal Investment Company - KPST and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2013

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Fundamental accounting concept (continued)

*  As noted in note 23, the management of the Parent Company is actively pursuing the restructuring of
the above mentioned debt obligations with the related financial institutions which is expected to be
completed within six to twelve months. Further the management of the Parent Company is engaged in
discussions with all lenders to whom amounts are due, to restructure the dues including discussion with
the lender who has initiated legal proceeding for the withdrawal of the lawsuit initiated by them. (refer
note 23.3).

¢ As noted in note 24, the management of the Parent Company has requested a meetng with the
bondholders on 10 November 2013 tc extend the maturity of the bonds. On 17 November 2013, a
meeting was held and a decision could not be taken on the extension of the bonds as the legally
established percentage was not met and therefore the bonds remain due as of the maturity date.

e The parent company’s management is evaluating various strategies to improve the operating
performance, financial position, and adequacy of financial resources of the Group (including a plan to
exit certain investments) to ensble to meet its future obligations on due dates. As the Groups total
assets exceeded its liabilities by KID42,276,320 the Parent Company’s management believes the Group
has adequate resources to meet its obligations in future, if an effective strategy is implemented to utilize
such assets in future and /or exit at the right time.

The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern is dependent on availabdity of the continued support
from the financial institutions and Bondholders (i.e rescheduling of the profit/interest bearing borrowings
and Bonds mentioned In note 23 and 24), related parties and shareholdets and the ability of the Group to
improve future profitability and cash flows. The management of the parent company are in negotiations and
discussions with the leaders and is confident of the positive outcome of the discussions with the lenders and
the debt reconstructing plan, and therefore, has prepared the consolidated financial statements under the
going concern concept of accounting.

Had the going concern basis not been used, adjustments would be made relating to the recoverability of
recorded asset amounts or to the amount of liabilities to reflect the fact that the Group may be required to
realize its assets and extinguish its liabilities other than in the normal coutse of busiaess, at amounts different
from those stated in the consclidated financial statements.

3 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include
the measurement of investments at fair value through profit ot loss, available for sale financial assets and
Investment properties,

The consolicated fitancial statements are presented in Kuwaitt Dinars (IKD).

The group has elected to present the “statement of comprehensive income™ in two statements: the
“statement of profit or loss” and a “statement of comprehensive income”.

4 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Repotting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (TASB) and
applicable requirements of Ministerial Order No. 18 of 1990, as modified by the State of Kuwait for financial
services Institutions regulated by Central Bank of Iuwait.



Al Mal Investment Company - KPS0 and Bubsidiaries
Consotidated Financial Statements
31 Dacember 2013

m

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Statement of compliance {continued)

These regulations reguire adoption of all IFRS except for the TAS 39 requirement for collective impairment
provision, which has been replaced by the Central Bank of Kuwait requirement for a minimum general
provision as described under the accounting policy for impairment of financial assets.

5 Changes in accounting policies

The accountng policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statemenis ate consistent
with those used in previous year, except for a new accounting policy for Jjara financing and adoption of new
and amended standards discussed below:

51 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group applies, for the first time, certain standards and amendments that require restatement of previous
financial statements. These include I[FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, [FRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement and amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. In addidon, the application of
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities has resulted in addidonal disclosures in the annual
consolidated financial statements.

Several other new standards and amendments apply for the fiest time in 2013, However, they do not impact
the annual consclidated financial statements of the Group or the interin consolidated financial statements of

the Group.

The nature and the impact of each new standard/amendment is described below:

Standeard Effective for anunual periods beginning
TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — amendrment 1 July 2012
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 27 Separate Financial
Statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures 1 January 2013
[FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — amendments 1 January 2013
Annual Trnprovements 2009-2011 1 January 2013

IAS 1 Presenrtation of Financial Statements

The amendment to TAS 1 requires entities to group other comprehensive income items presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on those:

ay  Potentially reclassifiable to consolidated statement of income in a subsequent period, and
by That will not be reclassified to consclidated statement of profit or loss subsequently.
The amendments to IAS 1 changed the current presentation of the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income of the Group; however the amendment affected presentation only and had no impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance.



£ Matl Investment Company - KPS0 and Subsidiaries iz
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2613

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

5 Changes in accounting policies {continued)
5.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 27 Separate Financial Staternents

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. IFRS
10 replaces the parts of previously existing IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that dealt
with consolidated financial statements and SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entties. [t revises the
definition of control together with accompanying guidance to identify an interest in a subsidiary. To meet the
definiton of control in IFRS 10, all nine criteria must be met, including: (a) an investor has powet over an
investee; (b} the investor has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
and () the investor has the ability to use its power over the nvestee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. These new requirements have the petential to affect which of the Group’s investees are considered
to be subsidiames and therefore change the scope of consolidation. However, the requirements and
procedures of consolidation and the accounting for any non-controlling interests and changes in control
termain the same. IFRS 10 did not change the classification (as subsidiaries or otherwise) of any of the
Group’s exdsting (nvestees.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and TAS 28 Investment in Associares and Joint Venrures

IFRS 11 supersedes TAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures (IAS 31). It aligns more closely the accounting by the
investors with their rights and obligations relating to the joint arrangement. In additdon, IAS 31s option of
using proportionate consolidation for joint ventures has been eliminated. IFRS 11 now requires the use of the
equity accounting method, which is currently used for invesuments in associates. As a consequence of the new
IFRS 11, TAS 28 brings investments in joint ventures into its scope, however, the equity acccunting
methodology under IAS 28 remains unchanged.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosure requirements for various types of investrnents
including subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. It introduces new
disclosure requirements about the risks to which an entity is exposed from its involvernent with structured
entides. IFRS 12 disclosures are provided in Note 8§ and 19.

TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 does not affect which items to be fair valued, but clarifies the definition of fair value and provides
related guidance and enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad and
it applies for both financial and non-financial items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements except in certain circumstances. The application
of IFRS 13 has not materially impacted the fair value measurements carried out by the Group.

IFRS 13 applies prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Tts disclosure
requirements need not be applied to comparative information in the first year of application. The Group has
however included as comparative information the IFRS 13 disclosutes that were required previously by IFRS
7, ‘Financial Instruments; Disclosures’.

The group has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the current year, see Note 29,



&f Mal Investment Company - KPSTU and Subsidiaries i3
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2013

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Changes in accounting policies (continued;}

5.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures ~ Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(Amendments to IFRS 7)

Qualitative and quantitative disclosures have been added to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’
(IFRS 7) relating to gross and net amounts of recognised financial instruments that are (a) set off in the
statement of financial position and (b) subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements, even if not set off in the statement of financial position. The required disclosures are required to
be provided retrospectively,

The adoption of this amendment did not have any significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the group.

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 (the Annual Improvements)

The Annuval Improvements 2009-2011 (the Annual Improvements) made several minor amendments to a
number of IFRSs. The amendments relevant to the Group are sumimarised below:

Clarification of the requirements for opening staternent of financizl position (amendments to TAS 1):

e clarifies that the appropriate date for the opening statement of financial position (“third balance
sheet”) is the beginning of the preceding period (related notes are no longer required to be
presented)

» addresses comparative requitements for the opening statement of financial position when an entity

changes accounting policies ot makes retrospective restatements or reclassifications, in accordance
with TAS 8.

Clarification of the requirements for comparative information provided beyond minimum requirements
(amendments to IAS 1)
e clarifies that additional financial statement information need not be presented in the form of a
complete set of financial statements for periods beyond the minimum requirements
¢ requires that any additional information presented should be presented in accordance with IFRS and
the endty should presenr comparative information in the related notes for that additional
information.

5.2 1ASB Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, certain new standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards have been published by the TASB but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the Group’s financial
statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Standard Effective for annnal periods beginning
IAS 32 Financial Instruments; Presentation — amendments 1 January 2014
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets- Amendments 1 Januvary 2014
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments To be determined

[FRIC 21 Levies 1 January 2014
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5 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

5.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

§5.2.1 IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Amendments

The amendments to IAS 32 add application guidance to address inconsistencies in applying IAS 32°s critetia
for offsetting financial sssets and financial liabilites in the following two ateas:

» the meaning of ‘currendy has a legally enforceable right of set-off

*  that some gross setidlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and are required to be
applied retrospectively. Management does not anticipate a material impact on the group’s consolidated
financial statements from these amendments.

522 IAS 36 Impairment of Assets- Amendments

The amendments to LAS 36 reduces the citcumstances in which the recoverable amount of assets or cash-
generating units is required to be disclosed, clarify the disclosures required, and to introduce an explicit
requitement to disclose the discount rate used in determining impairment (or reversals) where recoverable
amount (based on fair value less costs of disposal) is determined using a present value technique. The
amendments are applicable to annual perods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, Management does not
anticipate a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements from these amendments.

5.2.3 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The TASB aims to replace TAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ (IAS 39} in its
entirety with IFRS 9. To date, the chapters dealing with recognition, classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and liabilities, and hedge accounting have been issued. Chapter dealing with
impairment methodology is still being developed. The effective date for the entire standard will be
determined after completion of the new impairment model.

Further, in November 2013, the IASB made limited modifications to IFRS 9s financial asset classification
model to address application issues. Although earlier application of this standard is permitted, the Technical
Committee of the Ministry of Commerce and Industry of Kuwait decided on 30 December 2009, to
postpone this early application till further notice.

The Group’s management have yet to assess the impact of this new standard on the group’s consolidated
financial statements. Management does not expect to implement IFRS 9 unnl it has been completed and its
overall impact can be assessed.

5.2.4 IFRIC 2] Levies

IFRIC 21 identifies the oblipating event for the recognition of a liability as the activity that triggers the
payment of the levy in accordance with the relevant legislation. The Interpretation clasifies that 'economic
compulsion' and the going concern principle do not create or irnply that an obligating event has occurred.

IFRIC 21 provides the following guidance on recognition of a lability to pay levies, 2} the liability is
recognised progressively if the obligating event occurs over a period of time, and b) if an obligation is
triggered on reaching a minimum threshold, the liability is recognised when that minimum threshold is
reached. The Group is not currently subjected to any significant levies so this amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements. IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies and measurements bases adopted in the preparation of the consclidated
financial statements are summatised below:

6.1 Basis of consolidation

The Group fmancial statements consolidate those of the parent company and all of its subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are all entidties {including structured entities) over which the Group has conwrol The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its mnvolvemnent with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and they are deconsolidated from
the date that contro!l ceases. All subsidiaries have a reporting date of 31 December. The details of the
significant subsidiaries are set out in Note 8 to the consclidated financial staternents.

All transacrions and balances berween Group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including untealised
gains and losses on transactions between Group companies. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset
sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a group
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
recognised from the date the Group gains control, or until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary , as applicable.

Noan-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and
net assets that 1s not held by the Group. The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of
subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
ownetship interests. Losses within 2 subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction, If the group loses controt over a subsidiary, ic

¢ Decrecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

¢ Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

¢ Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity

» Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

¢ Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

¢ Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

¢ Reclassifies the patent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income
to profit or toss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group has directly

disposed of the related assets or labilities. )

6.2 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method n accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date Fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes
the fair value of any asset or lability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs
are expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controliing interests
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

6.2 Business combinations (continued)
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquiret’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless
of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the
acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilides assumed are generally measured at their acquisiion-date fair values.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic clircumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the sepatation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

Any contngent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be
asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with TAS 39 either in profit or loss or as change to other
comprehensives tncome. If the contingent consideration is classified as equiry, it should not be remeasured
untll it is finally settded within other comprehensive income.

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets, It is calcujated as the excess of
the sum of a} fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non controlling interest
in the acquiree and ¢} acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over the
acquisidon-date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum
calculated above, the excess amount {(i.e. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in profit or loss
immediately,

6.3 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not
individually identified and separately recognised. See note 6 for information on how goodwill is initialty
determined. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Refer to note 6.12 for a
description of impairment testing procedures.

0.4 Investment in associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence but which ate neither
subsidiaries nor joint ventures. Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any goodwill or fair value adjustment atiributable to the Group’s
share in the associate is not recognised separately and is included in the amount recognised as investment in
associates,

Under the equity method, the carrying amount of the Investment in associates is increased or decreased to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, adjusted
whete necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of the Group.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in those entities, Where unrealised losses are eliminated, the
underlying asset 15 also tested for impairment.

The share of results of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. This
is the profit ateributable to equity holders of the associate and therefore is profit after tax and non-controlling
interests in the subsidiaries of the associate.
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

6.4 Investment in associates (continued)

The difference i reporting dates of the associates and the Group is not more than three months.
Adjustments are made for the effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date and
the date of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The associate’s accounting policies conform ro
those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessaty (o recognise 2n
additional impairment loss on the group’s investment in its associate. The Group determines at each
reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the fnvestment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case the group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the ‘share of results of an associate” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retaining
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss.

6.5 Segment reporting

The Group has three operating segments: Investment, real estate and finance segments. In identifying these
operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s service lines representing its main products
and services. Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each requires different approaches
and other resources.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those used in its financial
statements. In addition, assets or lizbilities which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

6.6 Revenue
Revenue atises from rendering of services, investing activities and real estate activities. It is measured by
reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is made. The following specific recognition
ctiteria should also be met before revenue is recognised;

6.6.1 Rendering of services
The Group earns rental income from operating leases of ifs investment properties, Rental income is
tecognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The Group eatns fees and comimission income from diverse range of asset management, investment banking,
custody and brokerage setvices provided to its customers. Fee income can be divided into the following two
categories:

o Fee income earned from services thal are provided over a certain period of time
Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees
include commission income and asset management, custody and other management fees,

o (e dncome from providing transaction services

Fees arsing for rendering specific advisory services, brokerage services, equity and debt placement
transactions for a thivd patty or anising from negotiating or participating in the negotation of a transaction for
a third party are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.

The Group also earns income from communication services (from Tarasul Telecom) and are recorded when
services are rendered.
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
6.6 Revenue (continued)

6.6.2  Interest and sukuk income
Sukuk and interest income are recognised on a time proportion basis using effective interest method.

6.6.3  Rewenue from sale of investment properties

Revenue from sale of investment properties is recognised on completion of sale contract and after
transferring the risk and rewards associated with the Real Estate to the purchaser and the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured.

6.6.4 Dividend income
Dividend income, other than those from investments in associates, are recognised at the time the right to
receive payment is established.

6.7 Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss upon utlisation of the service or at the date of their

origin.

6.8 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attriburable te the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in finance
COSLS.

6.9 Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. The
group depreciates its property and equipment using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off the
assets over their estimated useful economic lives.

6.10  Iavestment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn retitals and/or for capital appreciation, and are accounted
for using the fair value model.

Investment properties are nidally measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently, investment
properties are re-measured at fair value on an individual basis based on valuations by independent real estate
valuers and are included in the consolidated statement of financial position. Changes in fair value are taken to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties are de-recognised when etther they have been disposed of or when the investment
propetty is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the
consclidated statement of profit or loss in the year of retirerent or disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when thete is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupled property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to
the date of change in use.
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

6.11 Impairment testing of goodwill and non financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating urits). As 2 result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which management monitors goodwill,

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Group’s management as
equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least annually. All other individual assets or
cash-generating unics are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in citcumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable

An impatrment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To
determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from the asset or each cash-
generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
(lows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved
budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effect of future reorganisations and assets enhancements.
Discount factors are determined individually for each asset or cash-generating unit and reflect management’s
assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risks factors.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that
cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impaitment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount,

6.12 Financial instruments

6.12.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs,
except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initally at fair value.
Subsequent measurement of firancial assets and financial liabilities are described below.

All ‘regular way’ purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date .e. the date that the
entity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of group of similar financial asscts) is
primarily derecognised when:

e rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired;

s the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without marterial delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’
arranpement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
¢.12  Financial instrument (continued)

6.12.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing invoivement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

A financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially medified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recogaised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

6.12.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon
initial recognition:

* loans and recefvables
¢ financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
+ available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting
date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial assets, which
are described below.

All significant income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised 1n profit or loss are
presented, under separate headings in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

e Loans and receivables

Loans and teceivables are non-derivative fmnancial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Discounting s omitted where the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

Individually significant teceivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other
objective ev1dence is received that a specific counterparty will default. Receivables that are not considered to
be individually unpalred are reviewed for impairment in groups, which are determined by reference to the
industey and region of a counterparty and other shared credit risk characteristics. The impairment loss
estimate is then based on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group.

[n addition, in accordance with Central Bank of Kuwait instructions, a minimum general provision is made
on all applicable credit facilities (net of certain caregories of collateral) that are not provided for specifically,

The Group categorises loans and receivables into following categories:
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
6.12  Financial instrument (continued)

6.12.2 Classification and subsequent measuremnent of financial assets (continued)

o nvestment in sukuk
Investment in sukuk comprise investment in Islamic convertible debts instruments issued by a foreign real
estate entity.

o Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-terim,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

e Receivables and other financial assets

Trade receivable are stated at original invoice amount less allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An
estimnate for doubtful debts is made when coliection of the full amount is ne longer probable. Bad debts are
written off as incurred,

Loans and receivables which are not categorised under any of the above are classified as “other
receivables/other assets™.

o  Financial assets at EVITPL

Classification of investments as financial assets at FVITPL depends on how management monitor the
performance of these investments. Investments at FVTPL are either "held for trading” or "designated" as
such on initial recognition.

The group classifies investments as trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or are a
patrt of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit taking. When they are not classified as held for trading
but have readily available reliable fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of statement of
profic or loss in the management accounts, they are as designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss except for
financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.
The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions ot
using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

e AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this category or do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets.

Financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Impairment charges are recognised in profit or loss. All other AFS financial assets are measured at fair value.
Galng and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and reported within the fair value reserve
within equity, except for impairment losses, and foreign exchange differences on monetary assets, which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity reserve to profit or loss
and presented as a reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income.
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
6.12  Financial instrument (continued)

6.12.2  Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

¢ AFS financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset available
for sale or a group of financial assets available for sale is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified
as financial assets available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the equity investment below its cost. Significant’ is evaluated against the otiginal cost of the
investment and ‘prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for financial assets that
are debt securities which are recognised in profit or loss only if the reversal can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.

6.12.3  Classification and subsequent measurement of financial labilities
The Group’s financial Gabilities include borrowings, bonds issued and accounts payable and other liabilities
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification.

The Group classifies all its financial liabilities as “financial Labilities other than at fair value through profic or
loss (FVTPL).

»  Financial lfabilities other than ar fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
These are stated at amortised cost using effective interest rate method. The Group categorises financial
liabilities other than at FVTPL into the following categories:

o Borrowings

All borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

e Bonds tisued

Bonds are carried on the consolidated staterment of fnancial position at their principal amount, net of dicectly
related costs of issuing the bonds to the extent thar such costs have not been amortised, These costs are
amortised through the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest rate method.

s [jara finaneing

Tjara finance payable ending with ownership is an Islamic financing arrangement through which a financial
institution provides finance to purchase an asset by way of renting the asset ending with transferring its
ownership. This {jara finance payable is stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of deferred finance
cost. Deferred finance costs are expensed on a time apportionment basis taking into account the borrowing
rate attributable and the balance outstanding,

o Awounts payables and otber financial labilitier

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed
by the supplier or not, and classified as trade payables. Financial liabilities other than at FVITPL which are
not categorised under any of the above are classified as “accounts payable and other labilities”

All interest-related charges are included within finance costs or interest income.
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
6.12  Financial instrument {continued)

0.12.4 .Amortised cost of financial instruments

This is compured using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The calculation takes
into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.

6.12.5 Offsetting of financial instriuments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

6.12.6 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined
by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for
short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using approptiate
valuaton techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the cugrent fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis or
other valuation models.

An analysis of fair values of fnancial instruments and further details a5 to how they are measured are
provided in Note 29.

6.13  Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares are deducted from share prernium.

Statutory and voluntary reserves comprise appropriations of current and prior period profits in accordance
with the requiremnents of the commercal companies’ law and the parent company’s articles of association.

Other components of equity include the following;

«  foreign currency translation reserve — comprises foreign currency translation differences arising from the
translation of financial statements of the Group’s foreign entities into IKID

»  Cumulatve changes in fair value reserve — comprises gains and losses relating to available for sale
financial assets

Accumulated losses includes all current and prior petiod losses. All transactions with owners of the parent are
recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have
been approved in a general meeting.
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

0.14  Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group
and not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this
method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity.

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in equity, (the “gain on sale of
treasury shares reserve”), which is not distributable. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to
the extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to
the voluntary reserve and statutory reserve. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of stock
dividend shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per
share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

6.15  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may sull be uncertain,

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required ro setde the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the
present obligation, Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole, Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an
inflow of economic henefits is probable,

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

6.16  Foreign currency translation

6.16.1 Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in currency Kuwait Dinar (KD), which is also the
functonal currency of the parent company. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

6.16.2 Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foretgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective Group entity, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and
losses resultng from the settlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency at year-end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary
ftems are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates
at the transaction date), except for non-rnonerary items measured at falr value which are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined. Translation difference on non-monetary asset
classified as, “fair value through profit or loss” is teported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and “available for sale™ are reported as part of the cumulative change
in {air value reserve within other comprehensive income.
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6 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
6.16  Foreign currency translation (continued)

6.16.3 Forefgn operations

In the Group’s financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Group entities with a functional
currency other than the IKID are translated into IKID upon consolidation. The functional cutrency of the
entities in the Group has remained unchanged during the reporting period.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been transtated into KD at the closing rate at the reporting date.
Geodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as assets
and liabilitles of the foreign entity and wranslated into KID at the closing rate, Income and expenses have been
translated into KID at the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange differences are charged/credited
to other comprehensive income and recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity ate
reclassified to profit or loss and are recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal,

6.17  End of service indemupity

The patent and its local subsidiaries provides end of service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these
benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum
service petiod in accordance with relevant labour Jaw and the employees’ contracts. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of employment. This liabtlity, which is unfunded, represents the amount
payable to each employee as a result of termination on the reporting date.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the Group makes conuibutions to the Public Instirmaton for
Social Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaties. The Group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

6.18 Taxation

6.18.1 National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

NLST is calculated in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions No. 24
of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the Group. As per law, allowable deductions include, share of profits of
listed associates and cash dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST.

6.18.2 Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The contribution to KFAS is calculated at 1% of taxable profit of the Group in accordance with the modified
calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors’ resolution, which states that income from Kuwaiti
shareholding associates and subsidiaries, and transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for
the year when determining the contribution.

6.18.3 Zakar
Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group in accordance with the Ministy of
Finance resolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10 December 2007,

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Parent Company has no liability towards NLST, KFAS
and Zakat due to losses incurred. Under the NLST, KFAS and Zakat tegulations no carry forward of losses
to the future years nor any carry back to prior years is permitted.

6.18.4 Fiduciary assets
Assets held in a trust or fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the group and, accordingly, they are not
included in these consolidated financial statements.
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7 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consclidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilides and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

7.1 Significant management judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

7.1.1. Classification of financial instruments
Judgements are made in the classification of financial instruments based on management’s intention at
acquisition. Such judgement determines whether it is subsequently measured at cost, amortised cost or at fair
value and if the changes in fair value of instruments are reported in the statement of profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The Group classifies financial assets as held for trading if they are acquired primatily for the purpose of short
term profit making,

Classification of financial asscts as fair value through profit or loss depends on how management monitors
the performance of these financial assets. When they are not classified as held for trading but have readily
available fair values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of profit or loss in the management
accounts, they are classified as fair value through statement of profit ot loss.

Classification of assets as loans and receivables depends on the nature of the asset. If the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive market and the intention is to receive fixed or determinable
payments the financial asset is classified as loans and recetvables.

All other financial assets are classified as available for sale.

7.1.2  Classification of real estate

Management decides on acquisition of a real estate whether it should be classified as trading, or investment
property. Such judgement at acquisition determines whether these properties are subsequently measured at
cost or net realisable value whichever is lower or fair value.

The Group classifies property as wading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The Group classifies property as investment propetty if it is acquired to generate rental tncome ot for capital
appreciation, or for undetermined future use.

7.1.3 Control assessment

When determining control, management considers whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of an investee on its own to generate returns for itself. The assessment of relevant actvities
and zbility to use its power to affect variable return requires considerable judgement.
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7 Significant management judgements and estimation uncertainty
(continued)
7.2. Estimates uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and

measurement of assets, liabilittes, mcome and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be substantially
different.

7.2.1  Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangible assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requites the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

7.2.2. Impairment of associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its assoclated companies, at each reporting date based on
existence of any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its catrying value and recognizes the amount in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In
2013 the Group recognised an impairment loss on investment in assoclates (see note 19}

7.2.3. Impairment of available for sale equity investments

The Group treats available for sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment. In 2013 the Group
tecognised an impairment loss on available for sale investments (see note 17).

7.2.4  Impairment of loans and receivables

The group’s management reviews periodically items classified as loans and receivables to assess whether a
provision for impairment should be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In particular,
considerable judgement by management is required in the estimation of amount and timing of fature cash
flows when determining the level of provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions
about several factors involving varying degrees of judgement and uncertainty. In 2013 the Group recognised
impairment losses on loans and receivables (see notes 16 and 18).

7.2.5. Fair value of financial instruments

Management apply valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments where active
market quotes are not available. This requites management to develop estimates and assumptions based on
market inputs, using observable data that market partcipants would use in pricing the instrument. Where
such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair values of financial instruments
may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date
(see notes 29).

7.2.6.  Revaluation of investment properties

The group carties its investrnent properties at faic value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine
fair values and rhe valuers have used valuation techniques to arrive at these fair values. These estimated fair
values of investment properties may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in 2 arm’s length
transaction at the reporting date.
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8 Subsidiary companies

8.1 Details of the Group’s material consolidated subsidiaries which are directly owned by the Parent

Company at the end of the reporting period ate as follows:

Country of
registration &
Place of Proportion of ownership
Name of the subsidiary business interest held by the Group Nature of business
2013 2012

Tarasul Telecom Co. K.S.C (Closed) Kuwait 96.89% 96.66%  Communication services
Diyar Al-Kuwait Real E£state Company — Kuwait 60.25% 60.25% Real estate development

KSC (Closed)
Al Mal International for Project Kuwait 80.00% 80.00% Real estate project

Management Co.- WLL managemeant
Al Mal Qatari Holding Company — KSC Kuwait 100% 100% Real estate project

(Closed) management
Safe Hands Holding Co. — BSC (Closed) Bahrain 60.72% 60.72% Health care

. Kingdom of o o —

Saudi Al Mal Co. — WLL Saudi Arabia 100% 100% Investment activities

8.2 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

The Group includes two subsidiaries, with material non-controlling interests (NCI}:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting

Name rights held by the NCI Profit allocated to NCI Accumulated NCI
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec,
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
KD KD KD KD
Divar Al-Kuwait Real Estate 39.75% 39.75% (1,266,145) (194.892) 2,439,865 2,842 141
Company KSCC (DKRE}
First Diyar Real Estate Company 19.35% 19.35% (233,261) 378,188 9,814,541 10,910,200
KSCC (FDRE) [subsidiary of Al
Mal Qatari Holding Company
KSCC]
Individually immaterial subsidiaries 230,094 (25,902) 160,890 223,782
with non controlling interests
(1,269,312) 157,394 12,465,296 13,976,103

Summarised financial information for the above subsidiaries, before intragroup eliminations, is set out below:

31 December 2013

DKRE FDRE
KD KD
Non-current assets 13,085,183 66,314,494
Current assets 6,515,561 2,707,563
Total assets 19,600,744 69,022,057
Non-current liabilities 2,822,010 -
Current liabilities 4,362,827 17,503,757
Tetal liabilities 7,184,837 17,503,757
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 7,473,062 41,549,509
Non-controlling interest 4,942,845 9,968,791
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8 Subsidiary companies {continued)

8.2 Substdiaries with maierial non-controliing interests (vontinsed)

31 December 2012

DKRE FDRE
KD KD
Noan-current assets 9,008,830 66,123,889
Current assets 15,577,405 269
Total assets 24 586,235 66,124,158
Nen-current liabilities 2,657,050 -
Current labilities 6,088,163 13,400,375
Total liabilities 8,745,213 13,400,375
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 9,501,485 42,521,731
Neon-controiling nterest 6,339,557 10,202,052

For the year ended 31 December

2013
DKRE FDRE
KD KD

Loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent company (1,837,650) (972,222)

Loss for the year attributable to NCI (1,266,145) (233,261)

Loss for the year (3,103,795) (1,205,483)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to the shareholders

of the parent company {190,753) -

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to NCI {130,567) -

Total other comprehensive income for the year (321,320} -
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the shareholders

of the parent company (2,028,403) (972,222)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to NC! (1,396,712) (233,261)

Total comprehensive income for the year (3,425,118) (1,205,483)
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8 Subsidiary companies (continued)

8.2 Subiidiaries with material non-controlling interesis (continued)

For the year ended 31 December

2012
DKRE FDRE
KD KD

Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the parant company {198,958} 1,576,270

Profit for the year attributable to NCI {194,892) 378,188

Profit for the year (353,850) 1,054,458
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to the shareholders

cf the parent company {7,950 -

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to NCI (4,305) -

Total other comprehensive income for the year (12,255) -
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the shareholders

of the parent company {206,908) 1,576,270

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable 1o NCi (199,197) 378,188

Total comprehensive income for the year (408,105) 1,954,458

For the year ended 31 December

2013
DKRE FDRE
KD KD
Net cash flow from operating activitics {57,352) {8,215,007)
Net cash flow from investing activities 1,985,749 {571,815)
Net cash flow from financing activities {1,900,000) 11,489,105
Net cash inflow 28,397 2,702,283

Net cash flow from operating activilies
Net cash flow from investing activities
Net cash flow from financing activilies

For the year ended 31 December

2012
DKRE FORE
KD KD
197,559 (15}
32,009 -
(587,037) -

Net cash inflow

(357,469) (15)
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9 Net income from communication services
2013 2012
KD KD
Subscription, activation and instaliation income 421,844 587,328
Hardware and software sales and project/maintenance income 2,303,897 24,004
2,725,741 611,332
Direct operating costs (2,293,568) (613,680)
432,173 (2,348)
10 Management fees and other income
2013 2012
KD KD
Management and consultancy fees 283,230 366,523
Rent income 544,240 537,307
Other income 23,854 5,423
851,324 909,253
11 Net loss or gain on financial assets
Net loss or gain on financial assets, analysed by category, is as follows:
2013 2012
KD KD
Receivables
- bank balances and short term deposits 35,970 40,829
-~ Investment in sukuk 282,968 564,500
- Impairment of receivables and other assets (1,761,947) (4,635,175)
- impairment of investment in Sukuk (2,682,390) -
Assets at fair value through profit or loss:
- held for trading - (7,054)
- designated on initial recognition (857,055) -
Available for sale investments:
- recognised directly in other comprehensive income(including minority share) (939,288) 952,792
- recycled from other comprehensive income to consolidated statement of
profit ar less
»  Onimpairment {180,155) (343,363)
«  Ondisposal 736,185 (550,313)
- recognised direcily in consolidated statement of profit or loss (1,860,527) 194,685
(7,226,239) (3,783,099)
Net loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss {6,286,951) {4,735,891)
Net (ioss)/gain recognised in other comprehensive income {939,288) 952,792
(7,226,239) {3,783,099)

12 Finance costs

Finance costs relates mainly to borrowings and bonds issued. All these financial liabiliries

amortised cost.

are stated at
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13 Basic and diluted [oss per share
Loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to the owners of the parent company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year as follows:

2013 2012
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of the parent company (KD) (9,377,925) (6,171,070)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
(excluding treasury shares) 528,281,250 528,281,250
Basic and diluted loss per share (Fils) (17.75) (11.68)
14 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
KD KD
Cash and bank balances 3,335,929 2,854 151
Short term depaosits 1,905,107 2,820,799
Cash balances with portfolio managers 7,280 1,555,203
Cash and cash equivalent as per consolidated statement of financial position 5,248,316 7,230,153
Less: Blocked balances * - (1,900,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of cash flow 5,248,316 5,330,153

*  Short term deposits of KID Nil (31 December 2012: IKID1,900,000) related to a subsidiary company are
pledged against islamic debt instrutaents of the same subsidiary.

Short term deposits carry an average effective interest rate of 0.83% (2012: 1.08%).

15 Investments at fair value through profit or loss

2013 2012

KD KD
Designated on initial recognition :
Managed porifolios and funds - 171,159
- Local - -
- Foreign - 171,159
Unguoted shares 796,942 1,621,958
- Local (15.1) - 825,000
- Foreign (15.2) 796,942 796,959

796,942 1,793,118

15.1 Band on the latest information avatlable, The Group’s management is of the view that the investment
is irrecoverable and has decided to carry the investment at KID Nil as of 31 December 2013. The
decline of IKID825,000 was recognised under unrealised loss from investments at fair value through
profit or loss in the statements of profic or loss.

15.2  Unquoted foreign shares represent investment in a GCC unlisted company. Due to the unpredictable
nature of future cash flows and the unavailability of financial information to atrive at a reliable
measure of fair value, the Group’s management has decided to carry this investments based on the last
catrying value stated by the portfolio manager in previous years, which would be deemed as this
investment revised cost. The Group’s management believes that the available information for the
investment has not indicated any impairment in value,
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16 Accounts receivable and other assets

2013 2012

KD KC
Advance payment to purchase investments 1,852,190 1,727,865
Refundable development expenses {156.2) 16,901,663 15,848,901
Due from related parties (net of provision) 241,067 219,410
Trade receivables 235,552 267,827
Accrued income & Dividends receivable 267,632 795,979
Cheques under collection in relation to proceeds on sale of investments 662,025 -
Other assets 26,344 766,233
20,186,473 19,626,215

16.1 During the previous year the Parent Company’s management has made a provision for the remaining
project costs amounting to [KID4,316,245 included in advance payment to purchase investments,
which was paid for the purpose of constructing the infrastructure of a telecommunication project, and
this was recognised in the statement of profit or loss of the previous year,

162 Refundable development expenses represent development cost incutred to develop an economic city
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia jointly with the Saudi authorities. The parent company is the main
developer for this project. A new shareholding company is being mcorporated in Saudi Arabia to own
and manage this project. The legal formalities are currently in process to establish that Saudi
shareholding company. As per the agreement, with Saudi authority on incorporation of the Saudi
shareholding company the rotal expenses incurred for the project will be re-reimbursed to the Group.

16.3 During the cutrrent year, the Group recognised an impairment provision of KID1,062,466 (31
December 2012: KID259,162) against accrued income related to investment in Sukuk which has not
been received until the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. {refer note 18).

164 During the current year, the Group also recognised through a subsidiary an impairment provision of
KID699,481 (31 December 2012: KID Nil} against advance payment to one of the former partners of
that subsidiary to putchase land in Trag, and this agreement was done by the former management in
2003.

17 Available for sale investments

2013 2012

KD KD
Investments in unguoted shares 5,719,133 6,359,388
- Local 2,608,147 2,585,275
- Foreign 3,110,986 3,774,113
Investments in private equity funds 1,432,007 5,158,450
- Foreign 1,432,007 5,158,450
investments in direct equity funds 980,148 3,645 723
- Local 898,551 769,361
- Foreign 81,595 2,776,362
Investments in portfolios managed by others 212,473 309,309
- Local 64,626 64,622
- Foreign 147,847 244 687
8,343,759 15,372,870

17.1 Available for sale investments include investments of KD4,117,074 (31 December 2012:
KID2,442,965), carried at cost less impaitment, if any, due to the unpredictable nature of future cash
flows and the unavailability of financial information to arrive at a reliable measure of fair value.
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17

17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

18

Available for sale investments (continued)

Information for investments in private equity funds and direct equity funds is limited to periodic
financial reports provided by the investment managers. These Investments are carvied at net asset
values reported by the investment managers. Due to the nature of these investments, the net asset
values reported by the investment managers represent the best estimate of fair values available for
these investmenits.

Investments in unquoted shares include investments with a carrying value of KID469,634 which has
been blocked against borrowings due to a legal case initiated by one of the lender’s (refer 23.3).

During the year, the group recognised an impairment loss of KID180,155 for certain local and other
foreign uaquoted investments (2012: KID343,363), based on estimates made by management and the
net asset values reported by investment managers at the reporting date.

During the vear, the Group disposed investments in three direct equity funds for consideration of
KI>1,845,579 realizing a net gain of [KID97,362.

During the yeat, the Group disposed an unquoted local investment for a consideration of KI2662,025
realizing a loss of IKKID2,975 (2012: unquoted local investments for a considetation of KI23,006,000
realising a loss of KI21,388,000).

During the year, the Group disposed certain private equity funds for a consideration of KID1,909,703
realizing a net loss of KID1,617,770.

Investment in Sukuk

This tepresents investments by a local subsidiary in two convertible sukuk issued by foreign real estate
institutions. The investment in sukuks amounting to KI33,897 714 (2012: KI56,369,397) carries profit at the
rate of 9% (2012: 9%) and matures on 31 March 2016.

During the year the Group recognized impairment losses of KIDZ,682,390 against both of the sukuk
investments due to the decline in value of the underlying assets of the sukul entities.

Further, the Group has stopped accruing for the income on both sukuk investments; the sukuk gross
accrued income not received up to the reporting date amounting to KID1,062,466 (2012: KID1,036,648) which
was shown under accounts receivables and other assets (note 16) has been fully provided for.

19 Investment in associates
2013 2012
Kb KD

The movement in associates during the year is as follows:

Balance at 1 January 11,805,998 6,451,493
Additions during the year 1,555,400 3,854,240
Share of resulis * 202,187 3,100,985
Groups share of associates change in other comprehensive income 67,387 (288,233)
Dividend received (45,851) {83,121)
Impairment in value {691,955) (1,229,628)
Exchange differences arising on transiation of foreign operations (406,016) (39,738)

Balance at 31 December 12,487,150 11,805,993
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19 investment in associates {continued)

* Share of results include negative goodwill amounting to IKID802,876 (31 December 2012: KID3,135,973)
(refer 19.2)

Details of the Group’s material associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Country of
registration and
Principal place of

business Nature of business Percentage ownership
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2013 2012
Advance Zone General Trading WLL {19.2) Kuwait/lrag General trading 40% 30%
Falcon Aviation Group Limited British Virgin Air cargo 20% 20%
Islands

19.1 Al of the above named associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated
financial statements.

19.2 Duting the 1% quarter of 2012 the Group acquired 30% of Advance Zone General Trading WILL
{which owns a stake in Investment and Technology Group of Companies, Limited —- B.V I, a company
which operates in the telecommunication sector in Irag) for a consideration of KD3894,240. A
negative goodwill of KID3,135973 (excess of the investors share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment) arcse as a result of the above
acquisition and this has been recognised as income in the previous year’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss under “share of result of associates”.

Further during the current year the group entered into an agreement to acquire an additional 10% of
Advance Zone General Trading WLL for a consideration of KID1,555,400. A negative goodwill of
KID802,876 arose as a result of the additional acquisition and this was recognised in the current yeat’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss under “share of result of associates™.

19.3 The Group has recorded its share in Advance Zone General Trading based on 31 December 2013
financial statements and the shate of results of Falcon Aviation Group Limited has been recorded
based on the 30 September 2013 management accounts.

19.4  During the year the management of the Group decided to take an impairment provision of
IKI0691,955 (31 December 2012: KI3587,777) against the carrying value of Falcon Aviation Group
Limited. An impairment provision was also recongised during the previous year on the carrying value
of Mazaya Gateway and Al Mustathmer Al-Watani which amounted to KID641,851,

19.5 Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s material associates are set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents the amounts presented in the financial
statements of the associates (and not the Group’s share of those amounts) adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the associate:
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19 investment in associates (continued)

19.5.1 Advance Zone General Trading WLL

31 Dec. 31 Dec,
2013 2012
KD KD
Non-current assets 19,704,785 19,647,508
Current assets 4,127,272 4,082,376
Current liabilities {182,611) (157,123)
Equity 23,648,448 23,582,759
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2013 2012
KD KD
Profit/{loss}t for the year 6,758 (40,608)
Other comprehensive income for the year 59,929 189,323
Total comprehensive income for the year 66,687 148,715

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the investment in Advance

Zone General Trading WLL is set out below:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2013 2012
KD KD
Net assets of the asscciate attributable to the shareholders of the Group 23,649,446 23,582,759
Proporticn of the Group's ownership interest in the associate 40% 30%
Carrying value of the investment 9,459,779 7,074,828
Advance Zone General Trading WLL, 18 an unquoted investment.
19.5.2 Falcon Aviation Group Limited.
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2013 2012
KD KD
Non-current assets 23,432,378 24,305,452
Current assets 7,292,196 14,957,188
Non-current liabilities {13,114,429) (14,509,888)
Current liabilities (6,969,550) (8,451,420)
Eguity 10,640,595 16,301,332
Less: Non controlling interest (85,529} (2,461,642)
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Group 10,555,066 13,839,690
31 Dec. 31 Dec,
2013 2012
KD KD
Revenue 24,497,643 27,137,503
Loss from continuing operations (2,990,873) (841,754)
Loss tax profit from discontinued operations (591,862) -
Loss for the year (3,582,735) {841,754)
Other comprehensive income for the year 298,110 (730,301)
Total comprehensive income for the year (3,284,625) (1,572,055)
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19 Investment in associates (continued)

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the investment in Falcon

Aviation Group Limited is set out below:

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2013 2012
KD KD
Net assets of the associate attributable to the shareholders of the Group 10,555,066 13,839,690
Propottion of the Group’s ownership interest in the associate 20% 20%
Interest in associate 2,111,013 2,767,838
Goodwill - 691,955
Carrying value of the investment 2,111,013 3,459,893
Falcon Aviation Group limited, 1s an unguoted investment.
19.6  Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material to the Group:
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2013 2012
KD KD
The Group’s share of prefit for the year 113,155 186,339
The Group's share of other comprehensive income for the year (422,222} (239,764)
The Group's share of total comprehensive income for the year {309,087) (53,425)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interest in these
associates as of the reporting date 916,358 1,271,277
20 investment properties
2013 2012
KD KD
Investment properties 8,546,653 8,175,929
Land and properties under development 66,314,494 66,123,888
74,861,147 74,299,817
The movement for investment properties is as follows:
2013 2012
KD KD
Balance as of 1 January 74,299,817 72,345,033
Additions 1,347,075 -
Changes in fair value {532,848) 1,974,667
Faoreign currency translation adjustment arising on ¢consolidation (252,897) (19,883)
74,861,147 74,299,817

Investment propetties with a carrying value of I<ID6,194,763 (2012: KI25,576,850) of a local subsidiary are
pledged against Islamic debt instruments of the same subsidiary. Further mvestment property of a local
subsidiary with a carrying value of KI266,314,494 (2012: KD Nill} are subject to a Jjara financing facility (refer

note 23).

Borrowing costs of [ID774.354 (2012: KD Nil) incurred in relation to the Tjara financing arrangement of a

local subsidiary have been capitalised during the year.

The details of fair valuation of investment properties are disclosed in note 29.

The above properties are located in GCC and other Middle Eastern countries.
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21 Property & equipment

During the year, one of the Group’s foreign subsidiary’s sold a property located in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
which was carried at IKID798,153 at 31 December 2012 for a consideration of IKID1,391,324 resulting a gain of
IKID 593,171 being recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss.

22 Accounts payables and other liabilities

2013 2012

KD KD
Payables on purchase of investment property (a) - 11,378,845
Due ic related parties (Note 28) 3,756,353 3,956,918
Accrued expenses 121,887 161,496
Accrued finance costs 2,119,685 679,809
Trade payable and payable to coniractors 6,678,109 6,166,277
Other credit batances 229,929 340,002
12,905,963 22,683,047

a. The payable on purchase of investment property at 31 December 2012 amounting to KID11,378,545
represented one of the local subsidiary’s payable on purchase of investment properties in Qatar with a
carrying value of KIDG6,123,888 at that date (note 20). The Lability was a current liability as it was
matured,

On 2 Decernber 2012, the Company received a letter from the Qatari Company selling the above
mentioned property, which included several options of settling the payments due from the company on
the purchase of the said property amounting to QR147,082,405 (equivalent to KKI311,378,545). The
Company had opted the settlement of 25% of the amount due within one month from the date of the
notification and the remaining balance 75% o be settled on instalments within a year from the
notification date.

However, during the third quarter of the current year, this amount has been fully settled from the funds
received from an [jara financing (refer note 23).

23 Borrowings

2013 2012
KD KD
lcans 28,600,000 28,800,000
{slamic debt instruments
- ljara Financing (22.4) 12,263,490 -
- Murabaha payables 17,564,446 19,087,654
58,427,936 47 687,684

231  'The following is the maturity analysis of loans and Islamic debt instruments:

2013 . 2012

KD KD
Less than 1 year 55,873,581 21,582,810
From 1 year tc 5 years 2,554,355 26,104,854

58,427,936 47,687,664
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23

Borrowings (continued)

23.2 Loans and factlities have been granted to the Parent Company based on negatve pledges on the Parent

Company’s assers.

23.3 Qut of the total Botrowings of KID58,427,936 as of 31 December 2013, an amount of KI339,600,000 is

related to the Patent Company. During February & March 2013, the management of the Parent
Company has requested from all its lenders; to whom repayments were due in instalments from 2013 to
2016; to restructure its loans facilities totalling to KID28,600,000 and was able to successfully restructure
most of its debts totalling to KI1225,000,000 on a bullet payment basis (due in March & April 2014) as
opposed to the instalment payment as per the previous agreements. Borrowings of KiD11,000,000
obtained from z local Islamic bank were already on a bullet payment basis during 2013, of which an
amount of KI33,000,000 (along with the related profit) has fallen due during June 2013 and amount of
[D8,000,000 (along with the related profit) has fallen due during September 2013 and the iender has
formally requested setilement of the amounts due immediately in order for the bank not to initiate legal
proceedings. The Parent Company has requested the local Islamic bank to renew the principle amouat
for another year and is actively engaged with the lender to restructure the dues. Further one of the
lenders, a local bank, (the “bank”) has declined the restructuring request for the loan of KID3,600,000
(which was due in instalments) and informed the company to settle the instalment of KID600,000 on the
due date which was 31 March 2013 in ordet for the bank not to initiate legal proceedings. The Parent
Company’s management was of the view that settlement of the instalment due may resule in the Parent
Company contradicting the other reschedulement agreements signed with the remaining lenders and
consequently has requested the bank to reconsider the resechdulement request. On 10 April 2013 the
Parent Company was informed that the bank has inidated legal proceedings to foreclose on the Parent
Company as per executive order relating to the loan, and accordingly the total loan of IKID3,600,000 has
become due along with the related interest. The Parent Company has filed a complaint against this order
which resulted in suspension of the executive order till the next court hearing which was scheduled to be
held on 25 Aptii 2013 and then postponed to 2 May 2013, On 2 May 2013, the court rejected the Parent
Company’s complaint and the Parent Company appealed the court decision and the hearing was
scheduled to be held on 19 June 2013 and then postponed to 24 July 2013, On 24 July 2013, the court
rejected this case. Further on 7 May 2013, the Parent Company filed a case against the foreclosure and
the court postponed the case to 29 May 2013. On 29 May 2013, the court rejected this case, Further, on
15 July 2013 the Parent Company has appealed the court decision and the coutt has rejected the appeal
on 25 August 2013, Furthermore, on 7 July 2013 the Parent Company has also filed 2 formal request for
an expert to consider the issue and the hearing related to this which was scheduled to be on 7 October
2013 was postponed to 16 December 2013. On 16 December 2013, the court rejected this case and the
Parent Company has appealed and the court rejected the appeal on 13 March 2014.

The Parent Company is cutrently in renegotiations with the local bank who has inidated legal
proceedings to settle the disputes out of court.
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23 Borrowings (continued)

23.4 During the 3 quarter of the current year , a local subsidiary obtained Ijara financing from a Qatari
financial institution for a total amount of IKID12,263,490 the purpose of the loan was to settle the
remaining instalment dues on an investment property located in Qatar (refer note 20).

KD
Gross amount 13,432,801
l.ess: Deferred finance cost 1,169,311
Net amount 12,263,490

235 Investment properties of a local subsidiary are pledged against Tslamic debt instuments of
KID8,087,664 (2012: IKI28,087,604) related to that subsidiary {note 20).

23.6  The effective average interest rate of loans is 6.06% (2012 6.13%) The effective cost rate of the
Islamic debt instruments is 5.89% (2012: 6.5%).

24 Bonds issued

During October 2007, the Parent Company entered into an agreement to issue unsecured fixed rate bonds of
KID> 10,000,000 and floating rate bonds of IKID3,320,000 at an issue price of 100% of their principal amount
with original maturity on 2 October 2010. On 23 September 2010 with the consent of the bond holders the
maturity of the bonds were extended until 2 October 2012 On 20 September 2012 the Bondholders
approved the extension of the maturity date of the bonds to 2 October 2013 provided that the company
repay 10% of the nominal value of the bonds on 2 October 2012, and 20% of the nominal value on or before
1 September 2013, Consequenty the Parent Company setted the 10% amounting to KID1,332,000 on
20 September 2012 and this resulted in the reduction of the amount due on bonds issued to IKI211,988,000
{fixed rate bonds KID9,000,000 and floating rate bonds KID2,988,000). The fixed bonrds bear fixed interest
rate at 8.875% per annum and the floating bonds bear floating interest rate at 5.5% over the Central Bank of
Kuwait discount rate. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears.

On 30 September 2013 the Bondholders agreed to extend the due date of the bonds (including the 20% due
on 1 September 2013) to 18 November 2013 provided that the Group repay an amount of KI1D562,533 and
accrued interest. The Group has failed to pay this amount and on the 24 October 2013 the Bondhoelders met
and decided to notify the Parent Company of the default in paying the amcunt KID562,533 and accrued
interest, and accordingly noted that the entire bond amount of KID11,988,000 became due.

On 29 October 2013 the Group has requested a meeting to be held on 10 November 2013 with the
bondholders to extend the maturity of the bonds to 18 November 2014. The meeting was postponed to 17
November 2013 as the quorum was not met at the meeting which was held on 10 November 2013,

On 17 November 2013 a meeting was held and a decision could not be taken on the extension of bonds as
the legally established percentage was not met and therefore the bonds remain due as of the maturity date.

25 Share capital

- The authorised, ssued and paid up in cash capital of the Parent Company amounts to K152 828125
distributed over 528,281,250 shares with 100 fls par value each as of 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2012,

- The shareholders of the Parent Company has approved at the annual general meeting held cn
20 September 2012 to set-off accumulated losses amounting [KID27,979,602 against the statutory reserve
of KID4,802,301, voluntary reserve of KID4,802,301 and share premium of IKI318,375,000.
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26 Reserves and non-controlling interests

2013 2012
KD KD
Foreign currency translation reserve 26.3 (815,385) (227,029)
Cumulative changes in fair value 26.4 499,433 1,433,669
Non-controlling interests 26.5 12,415,296 13,976,103

26.1 Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s articles of association, 10% of the profit
attributable to shatcholders of the Parent Company before contribution to KEFAS, Zakat provision, NLST
provision and directors’ remuneration is to be transferred to statutory reserve. No transfer is requited in a
year when losses are made or where cumulative losses exist. The Parent Company may resolve to discontinue
such annual transfer when the reserve equals or exceeds 50% of the paid-up share capital.

Distribution of the statutory reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of
5% of paid-up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the payment of
a dividend of that amount,

26.2  Voluntary reserve

In accordance with the Parent Company’s articles of association, 10% of the profit atrributable to
shareholders of the Parent Company before contributon to KFAS, Zakat provision, NLST provision and
directors’ remuneration is to be transferred to voluntary reserve. The Parent Company may resolve to
discontinue such transfers by a resolution of the Parent Company’s board of directors. There are no
restrictions on distribution of voluntary reserve, No transfer is required in a year when losses are made or

when cumulative losses exist.

263  Foreign currency translation reserve
2013 2012
KD KD
Balance at 1 January (227,029) 22,904
Exchange differences arising cn translation of foreign operations (655,743) (170,997)
Groups share of asscciates foreign currency translation reserve 67,387 (78,936)
Balance at 31 December (815,385) (227,029)
264  Cumulative changes in fair value
2013 2012
KD KD
Balance at 1 January 1,433,669 480,877
Net changes in fair value arising during the year (378,208) 59,116
Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal {736,185) 550,313
Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on impairment 180,155 343 363
Balance at 31 December 499,433 1,433,662
265  Non-controlling interests
2013 2012
KD KD
Balance at 1 January 13,976,103 13,849,618
Amount due to non-controlling interests on reduction of share capital by
subsidiary {286,111) -
(Loss)/profit for the year (1,269,312} 157,394
Net changes in fair value of availabie for sale investments (5,052} -
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations (332} {30,909)
Balance at 31 December 12,415,296 13,976,103




21 Mal Investment Company - KPS and Subsidiavies 42
Consolidated Financial Btatements
31 Desember 2013

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

27 Segmental information

The group activities are concentrated in three main segiments: real estate, investment and finance, The
segments’ resulfs are reported to the higher management in the group. In addidon, the segments tesults,
assets and liabilities are reported based on the geographic locations which the group operates in.

271 The following is the segments information, which conforms with the internal reporting presented to

management:
2013
Real estate investments Financing Unallocated Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Total income 604,563 (1,495,980) 318,938 618,733 46,254
Expenses and other charges (851,983) (5,208,979) (3,544,905) (1,087,624) (10,693,491)
{Loss)/profit for the year {247,420) (6,704,959) (3,225,967) (468,891) {10,647,237)
Assets 74,861,147 40,180,197 6,582,364 4,325,724 125,949,432
Liabilities (14,015,266) (7,636,117} (58,152,4486) {3,869,283) (83,673,112)
Net assets 60,845,881 32,544,080 (51,570,082) 456,441 42,276,320
Sukuk and interest income - - 318,938 - 318,938
Finance costs - - (3,544,905) - {3,544,905)
Impairment in value of investments - (2,8862,545) - - (2,862,545)
Impairment ¢f investment in
associates - (691,955} - - (691,955)
impairment of receivables and
other assats - {1,062,466) - {699,481) (1,761,947)
2012
Real estate Investments Financing Unallocated Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Total income 2,511,974 2,738,319 605,329 495,462 6,351,084
Expenses and other charges (742,708) (7,158,841) (4,115,318} (349,892) (12,364,780)
Profit/{loss) for the year 1,769,266 (4,418,522) (3,509,980} 145,570 (6,013,676)
Assets 74,299,817 46,668,804 9,190,125 7,355,438 137,514,255
Liabilities (12,708,114) (7,284 ,900) (59,675,664) (3,096,933) {82,776,611)
Net assets 61,590,703 39,373,904 (50,485,468) 4,258,505 54 737,644
Sukuk and interest income - - 605,32¢ - 605,329
Interest expense - - (4,115,318} - (4,115,318)
Impairment in value of investments - (343,363} - - (343,363}
Impairment of investment in
associates - {1,229,628) - - {1,220,628)
Impairment of receivables and
other assets - (4,635,175) - - (4,635,175)
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27 Segmental information (continued)

27.2  The geographical analysis is as follows:

2013
Domestic Internaticnal Total
KD KD KD
Total income 2,706,767 (2,660,513) 46,254
Loss for the year {2,646,329) (8,000,908) (10,647,237)
Total assets 36,401,316 89,548,116 125,949,432
Total liabilities (66,779,772) (16,893,340) (83,673,112)
Net assets (30,378,456) 72,654,776 42,276,320
2012
Domestic international Total
KD KD KD
Total income 2,591,527 3,759,557 6,351,084
Loss for the year (3,625,744) (2,487,932} (6,013,6786)
Total assets 21,896,541 115,817,714 137,614,255
Total liabilities (65,936,187) (16,840,424) (82,776,611}
Net assets (44,039,646) ©8,777,290 54,737,644

28 Related party transactions

Related parties represent associates, directors and key management personnel of the group, and other related
parties such as major shareholders and companies in which directors and key management personnel of the
group are principal owners or over which they are able to exercise significant influence or joint control

Significant transactions and balances with related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are
as follows:

2013 2012
KD KD
Balances in the consolidated statement of financial position:
Due from related parties (see note 18) 241,067 219,410
Due to related parties (see note 22)* 3,756,353 3,956,918
Due to related parties included in trade payables and payable to contractors
(note 22} 1,572,510 1,653,013

*Due to related parties includes an interest free advance of KID2,750,000 from a related party with no
specific repayment terms.

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2013 2012
KD KD
Transactions included in the consclidated statement of profit or loss:
Management fees and other income 85,853 82,256
Key management compensation:
Short term benefits 261,832 277,550
Employees end of service indemnity 26,971 29,400

Pricing policies and the terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

Transactions with related parties are subject to approval of the shareholders at the general assembly meeting.
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29 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
meastrement

29.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position may also be categorized as follows:

2013 2012
KD KD
Receivables(at amortised cost)
+ Cash and cash equivalents 5,248,316 7,230,153
+ Accounts receivable and other assets (note 16) 20,186,473 19,626,215
¢ Investments in sukuk 3,897,714 6,369,397
29,332,503 33,225,765
Assets at fair value through profit or loss
¢ Investments at fair value through profit or loss: (note 15)
- Designated on initial recognition 796,942 1,793,118
796,942 1,793,118
Avaitable for sale investments: (note 17)
+ At fair value 4,226,685 12,929,905
» At cost/ cost less impairment 4,117,074 2,442,965
8,343,759 15,372,870
Totat financial assets 38,473,204 50,391,753
Cther financial liabilities: (amortised cost)
«  Accounts payable and other liabilities (note 22) 12,905,963 22,683,047
+ Borrowings 58,427,936 47 687,664
+ Bonds payable 11,988,000 11,988,000
Total financial liabilities 83,321,899 82,358,711

29.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Investments at fair value though
profit or loss and available for sale investments (excluding certain available for sale investments which are
carried at cost/cost less impairment for reasons specified in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements)
are carried at fair value and measurement details are disclosed in note 29.3 to the consolidated financial
statements. In the opinion of the Group’s management, the carrying amounts of all other financial assets and
lizbilities which are at amortised costs is considered a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

The Group also measures non financial assets such as investment properties at fair value at each annuat
reporting date (refer 29.4)

29.3 Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are grouped
into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of
significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
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29 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair vaiue
measurement {continued)

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsetvable fot the asset ot
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indivectly (Le. derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {that is, unobservable
nputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified js determined based on the lowest level of significant
input to the fair value measurement,

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the statement of consolidated
financial position ate grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Total
31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
Note KD KD KD KD

Assets at fair value
Available for sale investments: -

- Unguoted shares - - 1,670,529 1,670,529
- Private equity funds 1,428,164 1,428,164

o 0 o T
'
'

- Direct equity funds - - 980,145 980,145
- Portfolios managed by others - - 147,847 147,847
Total assets - - 4,226,685 4,226,685
Total
31 December 2012 tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
Note KD KD KD KD

Assets at fair value
Investment at fair value through
profit or loss:
- Managed portfolios and funds
{International} a - - 171,159 171,159

Available for sale investments:

- Unquoted shares b - - 3,981,044 3,981,044
- Private equity funds < - - 5,158,450 5,158,450
- Direct equity funds c - - 3,545,723 3,545,723
- Portfolios managed by others d - - 244 688 244 688
Total assets - - 13,101,064 13,101,064

There have been no significant transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the reporting period.
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29 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

Measurement at fair value

The group’s linance team performs valuations of financial items for financial reporting purposes, including
Level 3 fair values, in consultaticn with third party valuation spedalists for complex valuations, where
required. Valuation techniques are selected based on the characteristics of each instrument, with the overall
objective of maximising the use of market-based information.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value, which are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting petiod, are as follows:

Financial instruments in level 3

a) Managed portfolio and funds (International)

The underlying investments in managed portfolios and funds represents quoted bonds and securities and
unquoted securities. They are valued based on latest reports received from the managers and the fair value
has been determined based on net asset values reported by the fund manager as of the reporting date.

b) Unquoted shares

These represeat holdings in local and foreign unlisted securities which are measured at fair value. Fair value is
estimated based on the net asset value reported in the lztest available financial information, discounted cash
flow model or other valuation technique which includes some assumptions that are not supportable by
obscrvable market prices or rates.

¢) Private and direct equity funds

The undetlying investments in these ptivate and direct equity funds mainly represent local and foreign quoted
and unquoted securities. Information for these investments is limited to periodic financial reports provided
by the investment managers. These investments are carried at net asset values reported by the investment
managers. Due to the natute of these investments, the net asset values reported by the investment managers
represent the best estmate of fair values available for these investments.

d) Portfolios managed by others
The underlying investments in managed portfolios represent quoted and unquoted securities. They are
valued based on latest fund managers reports.

Level 3 Fair value measurements

The group measurement of financial assets and liabilities classified in level 3 uses valuation techniques inputs
that are not based on observable market date. The financial instruments within this level can be reconciled
from beginning to ending balances as follows:

2013 2012

KD KD
As at 1 January 13,101,064 20,604,485
Change in fair value (203,106) 255,800
Net disposal (6,339,012) (5,794,001)
Additions during the year 187,000 -
Moved from level 3 to cost (see note 17) (2,339,106) {1,621,967)
Ipairment of level 3 investments (180,155) (343,383)

As at 31 December 4,226,685 13,101,064
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29 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

The following table provides information about the sensitivity of the fair values measurement to changes in
the most significant unobservable inputs:

Financial asset  Valuation Range
technique Significant {weighted Sensitivity of the fair value
unobservable input average) measureiment to the input

Ungucted shares  DCF Method  Long term growth rate for

cash flows for subsequent Higher the growth rate, higher
years 2% ~ 4% the value
Higher the WACC, lower the
WACC 7% - 15% value
Discount for lack of Higher the discount rate, lower
marketability 15% - 25% the value
Private equity NAV reported
and direct by investment Fair market value of the Higher the FMV of the assets,
equity funds manager underlying assets N/A higher the value
Other managed NAV reported
portfolios by investment Fair market value of the Higher the FMV of the assets,
manager underlying assets N/A higher the value

The impact on profit or loss and other comprehensive income would be immaterial if the relevant risk
varizble used to fair value the level 3 investments were changed by 5%.

Discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Group has determined that market
patticipants would take into account these premiums and discounts when pricing the investments,

In case of AFS assets, the impairment charge in the profit or loss would depend on whether the decline is
significant or prolonged. An increase in the fair value would only impact equity (through OCI) and, would
not have an effect on profit or loss.

29.4 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets

The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at fair value on
a tecurring basis at 31 December 2013:

Level 4 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD

Investment property

- Land in Qatar - - 66,314,454 66,314,494
- Building in Kuwait - - 4,642,000 4,642,000
- Building in Dubai, UAE - 216,649 - 216,649
- Building in Bahrain - 1,552,763 - 1,652,763
- Land in Egypt - - 2,135,241 2,135,241

- 1,769,412 73,091,735 74,861,147
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29 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement {continued)

Land in Qatar and Egypt

The land in Qatar zbove represents land which can be used for both residential and commetcial purposes and
the land in Egypt represents a land carergorised as “Iavestment land”. The fair value of the land has been
determined based on valuations obtained from two independent valuers who are specialised in valuing these
types of investment properties. The significant mnputs and assumpticns are developed in close consultation
with management. The two wvaluers have valued the investment property using the market compatison
approach. When the market comparison approach is used adjustments have been incorporated for factors
specific to the land in question, including plot size, location, economic condition, similar land prices in
sutrounding area and permitted activities on the land. For the valuation purpose, the Company has selected
the lower value of the two valuations (2012: lower of two valuations),

Buildings in Kuwait

The buildings in Kuwait represent buildings catergorised as “Investment Buildings”. The fair value of the
investment properties has been determined based on valuations obtained from two independent valuers,
who are specialised in valuing these types of investment properties. The significant inputs and assumptions
ate developed in close consultation with management. One of these valuers is 2 local bank who has valued
the investment propertes using the Yield Method. The other valuer who is a local reputabie valuer has
valued the investment properties primarily by using market comparison approach. When the market
compatison approach is used adjustments have been incorpotated for factors such as plot size, location and
cutrent use. For the valuation purpose, the group has selected the lower value of the two valuations (2012:
lower of two valuations).

Building in UAE & Bahrain

The building in UAL represents four office suites “Commercial units”, and the building in Bahrain is
catergorised as “investment buildings”. The fair value of the investment property has been determined hased
on valuatdons obtained from two independent valuers, who are specialised in valuing these types of
investment properties. The significant inputs and assumptions are developed in close consultation with
management. The valuers have valued the investrnent properties using the market comparison approach.
When the market comparison approach is used adjustments have been incorporated for factors specific such
as plot size, location, current rent yield and current use. For the valuation purpose, the group has selected the
lower value of the two valuaticns (2012: lower of two valuations).

Further information regarding the fair value measurements is set cut in the table below:

Range of Relationship of
Valuation Significant unobservable unchservable inputs to fair
Description technique unobservable inputs inputs value

Land in Qatar Market comparison Estimated market The higher the price per

approach price for land (per KDg40 — square meter, the higher the
Sam.) KD&60 fair value.

Buildings in Kuwail Yield method and
Market comparison KD11,385 - Higher the rent higher the fair
approach Average monthly rent  KD24,250 value

Building in UAE Markef Estimated market KD570 — Higher the price per square

and Bahrain comparison price (per Sgm.) KD897 meter, higher the fair value
approach

Land in Egypt Market Estimated market KD7.7 — Higher the price per square
comparison price (per Sgm.) KD8.1 meter, higher the fair value

approach
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29 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category and fair value
measurement (continued)

Level 3 Fair value measurements

The Group measurement of investment properties classified in level 3 uses valuation techniques inputs that
are not based on observable market data. The investment properties within this level can be reconciled from
beginning to ending balances as follows;

Total
KD

31 December 2013

Opening balance 72,445,506
Additions 1,347,075
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss (442.661)
Exchange differences recognised in OCl| (258,185)
Closing balance 73,091,735

30 Risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise, borrowings, bonds issued and accounts payable and other
lizbilities, The main purpose of these financial labilities is to raise finance for Group opetrations. The Group
has varicus financial assets such as accounts receivable and other assets, cash and bank balances, short term
depaosits, investment in Sukuk and investment securities which arise directly from operations.

The Group’s activities expose it to variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate
tisk and price risk), credit tisk and liquidity risk.

The parent company’s board of directors sets out policies for reducing the risks discussed below.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments.

The most significant financial tisks to which the group is exposed to are described below,

30.1 Market risk

a) Foreign currency risk
Foreign cutrency risk is the rsk that the fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group mainly operates in the Middle Eastern countries, Europe and USA and is exposed to foreign
cuttency tisk arising from various foreign currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Doliar, Qatari
Riyals and Euro. The group’s balance sheet can be significantly affected by the movement in these currencies.
To mitigate the group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Kuwaiti Dinar cash flows are monitored.

Generally, the Group’s risk management procedures distinguish short-term foreign currency cash flows (due
within twelve months) from longer-term cash flows. Foreign currency risk is managed by the group by
diversifying its investments geographically and monitoring the foreign currency movements and the groups
open positions on a regular basis,
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30 Risk management cbjectives and policies (continued)

30.1  Market risk (continued)

a) Foreign currency risk (continued)
The group’s significant net exposute to foreign curmrency denominated monetary assets less monetary
liabilities at the reporting date, translated into Kuwaiti Dinars at the closing rates ate as follows:

2013 2012
Equivalent Equivalent
KD KD
US Dollars 1,732,726 3,384,215
Qatari Riyal {12,263,117) (11,378,162)
Eure 3,897,714 6,369,397

If the Kuwaiti Dinar had strengthened against the foreign currencies by 5.7% {2012: 5.7%), then this would
have the following impact on the loss for the year. There is no impact on the group’s equity.

Loss for the year

2013 2012

KD KD
US Dollars (98,765) (192,900)
Qatari Riyal 698,998 648,555
Euro (266,604) (383,056)
Total loss 333,629 92,599

If the Kuwaiti Dinar had weakened against the foreign currencies by 5.7% (2012: 5.7%), then there would be
an opposite impact on the loss for the year, and the negative balances shown above would be positive and
positive balances will be negative.

Exposutes to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume and nature of the
transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of the group’s exposure to the
foreign currency risk.

b) Interest rate tisk

Tntetest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability or the
fait values of financial instruments. The group is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its short term
deposits {refer note 14), borrowings (refer note 23) and bonds payable (refer note 24) which are both at fixed
rate and {loating interest rates. The risk is managed by the group by maintaining an appropriate mix between
fixed and floatng rate short term deposits and borrowings.

Posidons ate tmonitored regularly to ensure positions ate maintained within established limits.

The following table illustrates the sensidvity of the profit/ (loss) for the yeat to reasonable possible change of
interest rate of +75 (0.75%) and -75 (0.75%) basis points with effect from the beginning of the year. The
calculation is based on the Group’s financial instruments held at each reporting date. All other variables are
held constant. There is no impact on group’s equity.

Increase in interest rates Decrease in interest rates
2013 2012 2013 2012
KD KD KD KG
Increase/{decrease) in loss for the year (513,831) (426,411) 513,831 426,411

c) Price risk

This is a risk that the value of financial instraments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
whether these changes are caused by factors specific to individual instrument or its price issuer or factors
affecting all instruments, traded in the market. The Group is not exposed to any significant price risks as of
31 December 2013 as majority of the company’s investments are unquoted.
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30 Risk management cbhjectives and policies (continued)

30.2  Credit risk

Credit risk s the sisk that one patty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. The group credit policy and exposure to credit tisk is monitored on an
ongoing basis. The group seeks to avoid undue concentrations of risks with individuals or groups of customers
in specific locations or business through diversification of its activities.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
reporting date, as summarized below:

2013 2012
KD KD
Cash and cash equivalents 5,248,316 7,230,153
[nvestment at fair value through profit or joss (managed portfolios) {(refer note 15) - 171,159
Investment in Sukuk 3,897,714 6,369,397
Accounts receivable and other assets (note 16} 20,186,473 19,626,215
Available for sate investments (note 17) 8,343,759 16,372,870
37,676,262 48,769,794

Except for certain available for sale investrent and receivables and other assets as stated in note 17 and 16
respectively, none of the above financial assets are past due or impaired. The Group continucusly monitors
defaults of customers and other counter parties, identified either individually or by group, and incorporates this
information into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports
on customers and other countegpatties are obtained and used. The group’s policy is to deal only with
creditworthy couaterparties. The group’s management considers that all the above financial assets that are
neither past due nor impaired for each of the reporting dates under review are of good credit quality.

None of the group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.
The credit tisk for cash and bank balances and short term deposits is considered negligible, since the
counterpatties are reputable financial institutions with high credit quality. Informaton on other significant

concentrations of credit risk is set out in note 30.3

30,3  Concentration of assets
The distdbution of financial assets and financial liabilities by geographic region for 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Asia &
Kuwait GCC Africa Europe USA Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD
At 31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 4,221,556 937,666 86,981 2,113 - 5,248,316
Investments at fair value through
profit or loss - 796,714 228 - - 796,942
Accounts receivable and other
assets (refer note 16) 1,647,901 17,432,556 - 1,106,016 - 20,186,473
Avgilable for sale investments 3,809,351 1,998,430 827,377 523,365 1,185,236 8,343,759
Investment in Sukuk - - - 3,897,714 - 3,897,714
9,678,808 21,165,366 914,586 5,529,208 1,185,236 38,473,204
Accounts payable and other liabilities 7,151,799 5,754,164 - - - 12,805,963
Borrowings 46,164,446 12,263,490 - - - 58,427,938
Bonds issued 11,888,000 - - - - 11,988,000

65,304,245 18,017,654 - - - 83,321,899
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30 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

30.3  Concentration of assets (continued)

Asia &
Kuwait GCC Africa Europe USA Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD
At 31 December 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 5,560,375 93,208 20,754 1,555,816 - 7,230,153
Investments at fair value through
profit or loss 825,000 786,714 245 171,159 - 1,783,118
Accounts receivabie and other
assets (refer note 18) 1,036,399 16,009,547 698,449 1,881,820 - 19,626,215
Awvailable for sale investmenis 3,268,693 2,860,220 1,535,294 3,164,038 4,444 6525 15,372,870
Investment in Sukuk - - - 6,369,397 - 6,369,397
10,690,467 19,859,688 2,254,742 13,142,230 4,444 625 50,391,753
Accounts payable and other fiabilities 5,857,473 16,825,574 - - - 22,683,047
Borrowings 47,687,664 - - - - 47 687 664
Bonds issued 11,988,000 - - - - 11,988,000
65,533,137 16,825,574 - - - 82,358,711

30.4  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will be unable to meet its liabilities when they fall due. To limit this
risk, management has arranged divessified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and
monitors liquidity on a regular basis.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s assets and liabilites. Except for investments
carded at fair value through profit or loss, investment in associates, available for sale investments and
nvestment propetties, the maturities of assets and liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining
petiod from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The marurity profile for investments carried
at fair value through profit or loss, investment in associates, available for sale investments and investment
properties is determined based on management’s estimate of liquidation of those investments.

Maturity profile of all assets and liabilities at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

1-8 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
«D KD KD Kb

At 31 December 2013
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5,248,316 - - 5,248,316
Investment at fair value through profit or loss 796,942 - - 796,942
Investment in sukuk - 3,897,714 - 3,897,714
Accounts receivable and other assets 20,186,473 - - 20,186,473
Available for sale investments - 8,343,759 - 8,343,758
Investment in associates - 12,487,150 - 12,487,150
Investment properties - 74,861,147 - 74,861,147
Property and equipment - 37,599 - 37,599
Goodwill - ~ 90,332 90,332

26,231,731 99,627,369 90,332 125,949,432
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities 12,805,963 - - 12,905,963
Borrowings £5,873,581 2,584,355 - 58,427,536
Bonds issued 11,988,000 - - 11,988,000
Employees’ end of service indemnity - 381,213 - 351,213

80,767,544 2,805,568 - 83,673,112
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30 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

30.4  Liquidity risk (continued)

1-5 Cver
1 year years 5 years Total
KD KD KD KD
At 31 December 2012
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaients 7,230,153 - - 7,230,153
Investment at fair value through profit or loss 1,793,118 - - 1,793,118
Investment in sukuk 5,369,397 - 5,369,397
Accounts receivable and other assets 19,626,215 - - 19,626,215
Available for sale investments - 15,372,870 - 15,372,870
Investment in associates - 11,805,998 11,805,598
Investment properties 66,123,888 8,175,928 74,299,817
Property and equipment - 926,355 - 926,355
Goodwill - - 90,332 90,332
101,142,771 36,281,152 90,332 137,514,255
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and othar liabilities 22,683,047 - - 22,683,047
Borrowings 21,582,810 26,104,854 - 47 687 664
Bonds issued 11,988,000 - - 11,288,000
Empioyees’ end of service indemnity - 417,900 - 417,900
56,253,857 26,522,754 - 82,776,611
The contractual matuzity of financial Labilities based on undiscounted cash flows are as follows:
On
demand
fup to 1 1-3 312 Over
month Months months 1 Year Total
KD KD KD KD KD
31 December 2013
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 2,268,265 7,289 10,630,409 - 12,905,983
Borrowings 14,600,000 17,760,288 25,162,817 2,760,378 60,283,483
Bonds issued 41,988,000 - - - 11,988,000
Employees’ end of service indemnity - - 351,213 351,213
28,856,265 17,767,577 35,793,226 3,111,591 85,528,659
31 December 2012
Financial liahilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 262,381 8,830 22,411,836 - 22,683,047
Borrowings 1,005,202 4,230,797 18,080,366 26,572,980 49,899,345
Bonds issued - - 12,758,641 - 12,758,641
Employees’ end of service indemnity - - - 417,900 417,900
1,267,583 4,239,627 53,260,843 26,990,880 85,758,933
31 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders 2nd to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the costs of capital.

The group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic
conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, buy back shares, issue new shares or sell

assets to reduce debt.
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31 Capital risk management {continued)
There wete no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management duting the year as compared to the
previous year. The capital structure of the Group consists of the following;

2013 2012
KD KD
Borrowings (refer note 23) 58,427,936 47,687,664
Bonds payable (refer note 24) 14,988,000 11,988,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14) (5,248,316) (7,230,153)
Net debt 65,167,620 52,445 511
Total equity 42,276,320 54,737,644
Total Capital 107,443,940 107,183,155

In order to maintain or adjust the capiral structure, the Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the consclidated statement of financial
position plus net debt.

2013 2012
KD KD

Net debt 65,167,620 52,445 511
Total capital 107,443,940 107,183,165
Gearing ratio 61% 49%
32 Contingent liabilities and commitments

2013 2012

KD KD
Bank guarantees issued - 40,000
Uncalled instalment for financial investments 44,348 364,733
Capital commitment related to intangible asset - 1,378,569

33 Assets under management

The Group manages mutual funds, portfolios on behalf of its major shareholders, other related parties and
outsidets, and maintains securities in fiduciary accounts which are not reflected in the Group's statement of
financial position. Assets under management at 31 December 2013 amounted to KID70,588,283 (31
December 2012; KID71,719,970) of which assets managed on behalf of its related parties amounted to
IKID10,000,000 (31 Decenber 2012 : KID10,000,000).

During the year total fees earned by the Group from assets under management amounted to KID85,853
(2012: IKID82,265)

34 Proposed dividend
The Board of Directors proposed not to distribute any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013. This

proposal is subject to the approval of the general assembly of the sharcholders, No dividends were distributed
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2012,





